ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON
January 31, 2006
11: 05 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Mark Neuman, Chair
Representative Carl Gatto
Representati ve Bob Lynn
Representative Bill Thomas
Represent ati ve Peggy W1 son
Representative Les Gara
Represent ati ve Wodi e Sal non

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 14
Uging the United States Congress to pass legislation to convey
land to the University of Al aska.
- MOVED CSHIR 14(EDU) OUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HIR 14

SHORT TITLE: URGE CONGRESS TO GRANT LAND TO UNI VERSI TY
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) ELKI NS

03/ 01/ 05 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 01/ 05 (H EDU, RES
01/ 31/ 06 (H EDU AT 11: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

JAMES VAN HORN, Staff

to Representative JimElkins

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TION  STATEMENT: Present ed HIR 14 on behal f of
Represent ati ve El ki ns.

REPRESENTATI VE JI M ELKI NS

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -1- January 31, 2006



Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as the sponsor of HIR 14.
ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR MARK NEUMAN called the House Special Conmittee on

Education neeting to order at 11:05:24 AM Representati ves
Neuman, Gara, Gatto, and WIson were present at the call to
order. Representatives Lynn, Salnon, and Thonas arrived as the

nmeeting was in progress.

HIR 14- URGE CONGRESS TO GRANT LAND TO UNI VERSI TY

11: 06: 12 AM

CHAI R NEUMAN announced that the only order of business would be
HOUSE JO NT RESCLUTION NO 14, Urging the United States Congress
to pass legislation to convey |land to the University of Al aska.

11: 06: 43 AM

JAMES VAN HORN, Staff to Representative Jim Elkins, Al aska State
Legi sl ature, pr esent ed t he sponsor st at enent [origina
punctuati on provided]:

House Joint Resolution 14 has been introduced to urge
the United States Congress to pass legislation to
convey land to the University of Al aska.

HIR 14 voices support for U S Senate Bill 293 the
federal University Land Bill [introduced] by Senator
Lisa Miurkowski (R-AK). That |Ilegislation provides a
grant from the federal governnent of 250,000 acres and
up to an additional 250,000 acres mnmatch from the
st ate.

As the largest |andholder in Alaska, it is inportant
that the Federal governnment provide support to the
University of Alaska. The University needs a nore
dependabl e revenue stream and this legislation wll
make the University of Alaska System nore stable and
simlar to other land grant institutions across the
nation. Eventually they wll be able to becone
financially i ndependent from yearly f undi ng
al l ocations fromthe Legislature.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 2- January 31, 2006



In conjunction with House Bill 130, [which was passed
| ast session], this land grant package wll give the
University of Alaska as nuch as 760,000 acres and w |

make them the envy of wuniversities around the globe

HIR 14 wll inform the nenbers of Congress how
inportant S.293 is to Alaskans because producing a
long-term revenue stream for the University is
inperative and in the best interests of all Al askans.

11: 08: 39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JI M ELKINS, Alaska State Legislature, said it was
"inmportant to recognize that the state has put up their [|ands
already and we just ask the federal governnment now to step up
and produce their lands."

11: 08: 58 AM

MR. VAN HORN, in response to a question by Representative Gatto,
said it had not yet been determ ned which group of |ands held by
the federal government were to be conveyed and whether these
| ands have sone reasonable value. He explained that S. 293,
introduced by U S. Senator Lisa Mrkowski, is specific as to
what | ands can not be conveyed.

11: 09: 51 AM

CHAI R NEUVAN directed the conmttee's attention to Attachnment C
which ranks Alaska last in university land grants in acreage.
He expl ained that the total university land granted to Al aska so
far has been only .11 percent, although many other states have
al ready received 100 percent of available university land from

t he federal governnent. He opined, "If we can get this [I|and]
t hrough the University [of Alaska], hopefully we can get it into
private hands, and the nore land ... we have in private hands

the better off we are."

11:10:48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA noted his disagreenent with "that blanket
statenent™ by Chair Neuman and said he would hate to | ose access
to fishing streans and such. He then asked if there were any
avai l abl e figures showi ng how Alaska ranks in ternms of how nuch
acreage has been given to the university.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 3- January 31, 2006



REPRESENTATIVE ELKINS replied that he does not have this
information but could obtain it. It was his understanding, he
said, that [Alaska] ranks really | ow.

11:12: 17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA expressed his concern that public access
provisions to recreational areas such as fishing streans nmay be
lost over time when land is conveyed to the university.
Therefore, he suggested introducing a proposal which, in
determ ning which lands to convey, would ensure public access to
t hese recreational areas are not given away.

11:13: 14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS said he wuld support a conceptua
amendnent to address this.

11: 13: 33 AM

CHAI R NEUVMAN acknowl edged the inportance of public access, but
recalled that a lot of the access issues were covered |ast year
in HB 130. He related that in his district, when areas
involving dog sled mushing were addressed, the university was
approachable and provided assurances that access would be
mai ntai ned around these areas should they ever be sold. He
informed the conmttee that those bills currently noving forward
that affect access rights, nust follow existing federal statute,
R S. 2477.

11:14: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON expressed her support of the bill
coommenting that it was "interesting to see that the federal
government has had 91 years to nmake good their promse to
Al aska, and they still have failed to do so ... they owe it to
us and that is a promse that's not been kept in all these
years." She said the one sentence in the sponsor statenent
which says that [the university] wll eventually "becone

financially independent from yearly funding allocations fromthe
| egi slature” is a circunstance she finds "highly doubtful."

11:15: 32 AM

MR. VAN HORN, in regard to Chair Neuman's question on whether
[HIR 14] would help S.[293], expressed his belief that it wll.
He said S.293 is currently being reviewed by the United States

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -4- January 31, 2006



Senate Committee on Energy and Natural Resources, on which
Senator Lisa Murkowski is a nenber, and that HIR 14 might add a
"kick start" to the process.

11:16: 37 AM

CHAI R NEUVAN asked whether the lack of ownership of |ands has
hi ndered t he devel opnent of the university.

MR. VAN HORN expressed his belief that it has hindered the
university's devel opnent and directed the commttee's attention
to a conprehensive legislative research report by Professor
Terrence Cole, dated Novenber 1993, entitled, "A Land G ant
College Wthout the Land: A Hi story of the University of
Al aska's Federal Land Gant" [a copy is available in the
commttee packet]. He said the report indicates that during
[1917] and 1947, the University of Alaska's total inconme from
its land was $227.50. He also referenced the 1915 |and grant
| egislation discussed in the report, which said that public
schools and |land grant colleges obtained far |ess acreage than
the 20 mllion originally intended.

11:18: 11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noted that the commttee packet includes
the "Federal Land Grants to States for Educational and O her
Pur poses” and "Total Gants by State" charts which specify that
Al aska has a total of 21 mllion acres. He said that this data
"doesn't seem to square,"” and asked whether this is land "we
never got or is this land that we do have ...?"

11:19: 05 AM

MR. VAN HORN explained that this land was proposed in 1915 by
Al aska Del egate Janes Wckersham but was never conveyed to the
state due to the slow progress of surveying federal [ands at the
time.

11: 19: 39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO again sought clarification on the figures
in the two charts and the actual neaning of the 21 mllion acres
listed for Al aska.

11: 20: 21 AM

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 5- January 31, 2006



MR VAN HORN clarified that these charts refer back to the
Morrill Act of 1862, the original land grant |egislation that
specified that 21 mllion acres would be conveyed to Al aska.
However, the land was never conveyed to the state because of
| ack of surveys.

11:21:42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON referred to a chart which showed Al aska as
having received .11 percent [of land grants]. [ Ganting | and]
may be difficult, she opined, because there are several federa
parks in many states as well as [interest] groups that actively
oppose conveying the | and.

11: 23: 31 AM

MR. VAN HORN, in response to Representative Salnon, said the
uni versity owns approxi mately 500,000 acres at this tine.

11: 24: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS asked if the land grants in the Haines
area which were set aside for education are sonme of the possible
| ands addressed in HIR 14. Upon hearing M. Van Horn's reply
that they mght be, Representative Thomas said there were 3 or
4, 15 to 20 acre parcels set aside for the education benefits of
the local Natives in the community that were |ater relinquished
by the Alaska Native Clains Settlenent Act (ANCSA).

11: 25: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON conmented that there is also |and that K-
12 education area were to receive from the state and from the
f eder al gover nnent ; however, t hat land hasn't even been
surveyed. She questioned whether sone of the land the
university currently owns has been surveyed.

11:26: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS asked whether the state or the federal
government would determ ne which lands to convey should HIR 14
pass.

MR. VAN HORN said Senator Mirkowski's bill, S.293, is very
specific with strict tinmefranes. The university, he explained,
may not select |ands conveyed to the State of Alaska or to a
Native corporation. Additionally, he said, the university "has

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 6- January 31, 2006



one year, after the Secretary [of Interior's] approval of the
selection, to make a final decision whether to accept these
lands or interest in lands, and shall notify the Secretary of
this decision. Again, it does say 'the university'."

11: 28: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS asked why wuniversity representation was
not present at the neeting. He asked, "Do they want this or is
this sonmething the sponsor wants to do?"

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS replied that [the resolution] "responds to
Lisa Mirkowski's legislation to show state support for what
she's trying to do in conveying that |and."

11: 29: 51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE THOMVAS opined that [the resolution should be
hel d] and the university present. "I think if I was going to
receive a couple mllion acres of land, | would definitely be on

top of sonmething here,"” he remarked.

11: 30: 25 AM

CHAI R NEUVAN suggested that "if HIR 14 does pass this comm ttee,
that you make sure that they're there at the next conmttee this
does go through.™

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS commented t hat when over 250,000 acres was
conveyed to the state, "they were here then."

11:31: 39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA noved to adopt Conceptual Anmendnent 1, which
read [original punctuation provided]:

Further resolved that in making land grants Congress
shall ensure the grants do not interfere with public
access to or along fishing streans, or al ong
established hunting, dog nushing, notorized vehicle,
mning trails or roads, or established roads or trails
used for recreational purposes.

He said the drafters would need to decide where to insert the

anendnent and suggested perhaps it should be placed on page 2,
line 12.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -7- January 31, 2006



11:32: 10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON objected for purposes of discussion

Al t hough she said she agreed with the concept, she opined that
there is no way Congress is going to know every single public
access area. Therefore, she suggested there should be a
provi sion that ensures [access rights].

CHAI R NEUVAN opined that the anendnment does "nake a statenent
towards ensuring that there is access to Al aska' s recreational
opportunities.”

11: 33: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS recalled being involved with the ANCSA
under which the federal governnment did ensure there was access
and easenments to recreational trails that were previously
i dentifi ed. He suggested that |anguage to that effect would
ensure the aforenmentioned is addressed.

11: 34: 23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA expressed his belief that an insertion
addressing access rights, into Senator Miurkowski's bill would
sufficiently ensure this happens, and that Conceptual Anmendnent
1, as witten, sends the necessary nessage to Congress.

11: 36: 16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON wi t hdrew her obj ection

There being no further objection, Conceptual Anmendnent 1 was
adopt ed.

11: 37: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON noved to report HIR 14, as anmended, out of
conmmittee wth individual recomendati ons. There being no
objection, CSHIR 14(EDU) was reported from the House Speci al
Comm ttee on Educati on.

11:37: 19 AM

ADJ OURNVENT

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 8- January 31, 2006



There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Special Conmittee on Education neeting was adjourned at |1:37
a.m

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 9- January 31, 2006



